
City of Mora 
Kanabec County, Minnesota 

Meeting Agenda 
City Council 

 
Mora City Hall 
101 Lake St. S 

Mora, MN 55051 

 
 

 

Tuesday, October 18, 2022 6:30 PM Mora City Hall 
 

1. Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Roll Call 
3. Adopt Agenda (No item of business shall be considered unless it appears on the agenda for the meeting. Council members may add 

items to the agenda prior to adoption of the agenda.) 

4. Consent Agenda (Those items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be acted upon by 

one motion under this agenda item. There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a Council Member so requests, in which 
event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered immediately after the adoption of the consent agenda.) 

a. September 20, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
b. September 2022 Claims 
c. Gambling Permit – MN Deer Hunter Assoc, Snake River Chapter 
d. Accept Restricted Donations – Res No. 2022-1021 
e. Firefighter Acceptance Rescinded – Bryce Norby 
f. Firefighter Offer of Employment – Jonathan Schwendeman 
g. Dala Dazzle Public Use Permit 

 

5. Open Forum (Individuals may address the council about any item not contained on the regular agenda. There is a maximum of fifteen 

(15) minutes set aside for open forum. A maximum of three (3) minutes is allotted per person. The City Council will take no official action on 
items discussed at the forum, with the exception of referral to staff for future report.) 

 

6. Special Business 

a. Airport Board  

b. Childcare Presentation- Kirsten  

c. Kanabec County EDA Director- Jim Hartshorn 

 
7. Public Hearings 

a.  None 

 
8. New Business 

a. Snake River Bridge Trail Connection- Joe, Natasha, and SEH 

b. Transportation Alternative Grant- Kirsten 

c. Conditional Use Permit- Summit Lane Res No. 2022-1022 – Kirsten 

d. Grader Replacement Pre-purchase Request- Joe 

e. Medium Duty Truck Request- Joe  

 
9. Old Business 

a. Grove Street Improvement Update- SEH 
b. Flexible Work Arrangements Res. 2022-1023- Glenn 
c. Consideration of Probation Release – Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 
 

10. Communications 
a. MAFD - September 2022 Report 
b. KCSO - September 2022 Report 
c. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – Cancelled 
d. Airport Board Meeting Minutes 
e. Park Board Meeting Minutes – No Quorum  

 
 
 



 
 
 

11. Reports 
a. City Administrator 
b. Councilmember Anderson 
c. Councilmember Broekemeier 
d. Councilmember Mathison 
e. Councilmember Shepard 
f. Mayor Skramstad 

 
12. Closed Session  In accordance with MN §13D.05, the City Council may hold a closed session for Meetings 

Having Data Classified as Not Public.  
 

13. Adjournment 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
September 20, 2022 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Alan Skramstad called to order the regular meeting of the 
Mora City Council at 6:30 PM on Tuesday, September 20, 2022 in the city hall council Chambers. 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 6:30PM 
 

2. Roll Call: Mayor Skramstad, Councilmembers Jody Anderson, Sadie Broekemeier, and Kyle 
Shepard. 
Absent: Jake Mathison 

3. Adopt Agenda: Skramstad requested the removal of item 6b. Taxicab Business License and 
requested the addition of item 6f. Tobacco License Dandelion Tobacco Inc.. MOTION made by 
Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to approve the agenda. 
Staff Present: Glenn Andersson City Administrator, Natasha Segelstrom Administrative Services 
Director, Joe Kohlgraf Public Works Director, Sara King Accountant, Kirsten Faurie Community 
Development Director, Caleb Christenson Building Official.  
 

4. Consent Agenda: Skramstad brought forward the consent agenda. MOTION made by Anderson, 
seconded by Shepard and unanimously carried to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes – August 18, 2022 
b. Regular Meeting Minutes – September 6, 2022 
c. August 2022 Claims 
d. Massage Therapist License Renewal – Asolare Yoga & Wellness, LLC 

 
5. Open Forum:    

At the request of Councilmember Broekemeier, she asked for the Council’s consideration to 
allow Kanabec County Staff to speak before the council in an open forum. Patti Miller and Kathy 
Burski of Better Together Coalition of Kanabec County spoke to the City Council for 
consideration of an Ordinance like what Kanabec County. They arrived at the meeting after open 
forum. Miller explained across the state, interim ordinances have been established in response 
to the approved sale of THC edibles and THC beverages. Miller explained the mission of the 
Better Together Coalition and need for further regulation. Surveys show that youth feel there is 
little to no risk using THC products and further regulation was needed. 
 

6. Special Business 
a.    Mortgage Satisfaction Document: City Council reviewed mortgage satisfaction 

document for the City of Mora Housing Rehabilitation Program / Deferred Loan 
Repayment Agreement and Mortgage David C. Anderson and Roberta M. Anderson. 
Previously, the mortgage satisfaction documents had been approved at the staff level. 
Council gave future direction about loan satisfaction documents and directed staff to 
have loan satisfaction documents completed by authorized signers without bringing to 
the City Council meeting. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and 
unanimously carried to approve the mortgage satisfaction document for the City of 
Mora Housing and Rehabilitation Program / Deferred Loan Repayment Agreement. 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
September 20, 2022 

Page 2 of 4 
 

MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier, and unanimously carried to have 
staff approve loan satisfaction documentation. 
 
 

b.   Taxicab Business License – Cabworx LLP: Item 6b was removed from the agenda. 
c.    Massage Therapist Business License – Oslowski Therapy: City Council approved the 

massage therapy business license for Oslowski Therapy. MOTION made by Broekemeier, 
seconded by Anderson and unanimously carried to approve the business license 
application for Oslowski Therapy.  

d.    Tobacco License – Kings Mart #46- Council reviewed the tobacco license for Kings Mart 
#46. MOTION by Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier and unanimously carried to 
approve the tobacco license. 

e.    Tobacco License – Mora Tobacco & E-Cig- Council reviewed the tobacco license for 
Mora Tobacco & E-Cig. MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Shepard and 
unanimously carried to approve the tobacco license. 

f.    Tobacco License – Dandelion Tobacco- Council reviewed a new tobacco license for a 
business downtown Mora. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson and 
unanimously carried to approve the tobacco license.  
 

7. Public Hearings: There were no public hearings. 
 

8. New Business:  
a.   North Country Bottle Shop – Maintenance Request: Anderson brought forward a 

maintenance request for the North Country Bottle Shop for maintenance and repairs to 
the exterior siding on the building. He explained that the quote for the entire building 
was $23,125 and recommended a phased maintenance approach, and the South side of 
the building be completed first, as it required the three coats of stain for $6,850. 
Councilmember Anderson asked if there had been any other bids for the repair. Glenn 
Anderson stated no others provided a bid. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by 
Anderson, and unanimously carried to approve the repair request for the south side of 
the North Country Bottle Shop not to exceed $7,000. 

b.   Audit Firm Selection: Segelstrom brought forward a request to continue Auditing 
Services with Bergan KDV for the next three years. She explained the City’s purchasing 
policy to ensure the best value and highlighted that in 2019 BerganKDV submitted a 
proposal significantly lower than other auditing firms. The firm’s performance, 
processes and knowledge had been excellent and that services continued. MOTION 
made by Broekemeier, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to continue 
auditing services with Bergan KDV for the 2022, 2023 and 2024 Annual Financial Audits.  

c.   Lease Software Purchase – GASB 87 and GASB 96 Compliance:  Segelstrom brought 
forward a request to consider purchasing software that would assist with legal 
compliance for the 2022 financial audit and beyond. She explained that staff had 
received demonstrations from two firms that specialized in lease software along with a 
program created by BerganKDV. She highlighted features each firm provided and 
explained there may be large implementation fees, but these would be an expense 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
September 20, 2022 

Page 3 of 4 
 

across all city budgets and council should also consider the cost of staff hours needed to 
implement and maintain leases moving forward. Segelstrom explained that staff would 
continue to look at the current and possible leases to ensure the best long-term value. 
 

9. Old Business 
a.    SEH – Grove Street Payment Request #4: Greg Anderson of SEH provided an update on 

the Grove Street Improvement project. Anderson explained the application for payment 
had been reviewed and recommended approval for payment request #4 for 
$311,333.53 payable to Douglas-Kerr Underground, L.L.C. MOTION made by Anderson, 
seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried to approve payment request #4 for 
$311,333.53 to Douglas Kerr Underground L.L.C.  

b.   2023 Preliminary Budget Resolution:  Anderson presented the preliminary budget and 
highlighted the sub-committee efforts. The preliminary tax levy presented a 25.92% 
increase factoring the HRA Debt levy. An overall increase of $309,578 from the 2022 
budgeted levy. Significant changes from the previous meeting included the 
HRA/Eastwood debt levy had been reduced by 50% to $98,572, added loan proceeds for 
a street sweeper and added savings for dump trucks and road grader. The added 
expenditures included a financial management plan and loan payments for a new street 
sweeper. MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried 
to approve Resolution Number 2022-921 the 2023 preliminary budget. 

c.   Reimbursement Resolution and Capital Improvement Request:  Kohlgraf brought 
forward a request to pre-order a 2023 Elgin Pelican Sweeper for purchase in 2023.  It 
was further explained there would be a bond for the street sweeper and Ehlers Financial 
Advisors would work closely with the city during the issuance and reporting to ensure 
State and Federal compliance. This option reduced the debt levy, and the city would 
have the equipment in 2023. City Council discussed the capital purchase and 
reimbursement resolution which would allow any incurred expense for the equipment 
transaction to be reimbursed. MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Shepard, and 
carried 3-1, to approve the capital purchase request for a new street sweeper. Opposed 
by Broekemeier. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson to approve 
Resolution Number 2022-922. 
        RESOLUTION NO. 2022-922 
     RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES 
    RELATING TO COMPLIANCE WITH REIMBURSEMENT BOND 
       REGULATIONS UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE. 
     (SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION) 
 
MOTION by Shepard to amend previous motion. MOTION to approve Resolution 
Number 2022-922 not to exceed the amount of $160,000, seconded by Anderson and 
carried 3-1. Broekemeier opposed.  
 

d.   Airport Hangar Land Lease Agreement: Faurie brought forward the proposed changes of 
the Airport Hangar Land Lease Agreement. The suggested revisions from the board were 
presented. The consensus among City Council was to approve the Hangar Land Lease 



City Council Meeting Minutes  
September 20, 2022 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Agreement that had been revised at the September 6, 2022, meeting and that the 72 
hours or reasonable accommodation was appropriate verbiage for the lease. MOTION 
made by Shepard, seconded by Broekemeier, and unanimously carried to approve the 
Hangar Land Lease Agreement as presented to the Airport Board without the requested 
changes. 
 

10. Communications:  City Council reviewed the communications packet.  
a.   Quarterly Financial Statements 
b.   KCSO Monthly Report – Pending 
c.    MAFD Monthly Report – August 2022 
d.    Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – September 2022 
e.    Airport Meeting Minutes – September 2022 
f.   Park Board Meeting Minutes 
g.   HRA Meeting Minutes 
h.   EDA Meeting Minutes 

 
11. Reports 

a.   City Administrator: Anderson provided an update on the flexible summer schedule 
amongst city hall staff and future agenda item for a flexible work arrangement policy. 
Provided an update on meetings regarding the Driver’s License Office.  

b.   Councilmember Anderson: Traffic issues on McLean Street. Fly In.  
c.   Councilmember Broekemeier:  Received a lot of calls on the THC Ordinance from the 

county. Stated it could be due to her councilmember status, membership with Better 
Together Coalition with Kanabec County or substance abuse professional and also had 
additional information. Community concern of new tobacco business downtown.  

d.   Councilmember Mathison: Absent.  
e.   Councilmember Shepard: Fall Fest and a BBQ cookoff. A lot of food vendors. 
f.   Mayor Skramstad: Thank staff, councilmember Anderson and Mathison for their efforts 

in the 2023 preliminary budget; Greg Anderson for the Grove Street project and Joe 
Kohlgraf for his work. 

 
12. Adjournment:  MOTION by Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to 

adjourn at 8:00. 
 

 
_______________________________________ 
Mayor 

______________________________________ 
City Clerk 



































Item No. 4d 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 18, 2022 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Sara B. King, Accountant 
RE: Accept Restricted Donations  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Mora has received the following donations: 
 

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION OF: 
First Citizens Bank $200.00 
Coborn’s Incorporated $100.00 
Mora Lions Club $100.00 
North Country Bottle Shop $314.00 
Protective Services Inc. RC Airplane $90 Value 

  
As required by MN State Statute, restricted donations must be officially accepted by the City Council.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to accept donations by approving Resolution 2022-1021. 
 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 2022-1021 





Resolution No. 2022-1021 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA 
ACCEPTING RESTRICTED DONATIONS  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mora is generally authorized to accept donations of real and personal property 
pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 465.03 for the benefit of its citizens, and is specifically 
authorized to accept gifts. 
 
WHEREAS, the following persons and entities have offered to contribute the cash amounts set forth 
below to the city, and the terms or conditions of the donations, if any, are as follows: 
  

DONATION RECEIVED FROM: DONATION OF: TERMS AND CONDITIONS OR 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: 

First Citizens Bank $200.00 Donation to 2022 Music in the Park 
Coborn’s Incorporated $100.00 Donation to 2022 Music in the Park 
Mora Lions Club $100.00 Donation to 2022 Music in the Park 
North County Bottle Shop $314.00 General Donation to Fire Dept. 
Protective Services Inc RC Airplane $90 Value Door prize for 2022 Fly-In 

 
WHEREAS, all such donations have been contributed to the city for the benefit of its citizens, as allowed 
by law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is appropriate to accept the donations offered. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the City of Mora, Kanabec County, Minnesota 
that: 
 

1. The donations described above are accepted and shall be used to establish and/or operate 
services either alone or in cooperation with others, as allowed by law. 

2. The city clerk is hereby directed to issue receipts to each donor acknowledging the city’s 
receipt of the donor’s donation. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for adoption by Council Member _______________ 
and seconded by Council Member ____________________. 

 
Voting for the Resolution: .......................  
Voting Against the Resolution: ...............  
Abstained from Voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  

 
Motion carried and resolution adopted this 18th day of October 2022. 

 
  ______________________________________  
ATTEST:  Al Skramstad, Mayor  

 ______________________________________  
 Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 





From: fire.chief <fire.chief@cityofmora.com>  
Sent: Thursday, September 29, 2022 2:15 PM 
To: Mandi Yoder <m.yoder@cityofmora.com> 
Subject: Re: Update 
  
From Bryce Norby  
  
Hello, it will not workout at this time to be on the fire department. I will turn in my pager at the nearest possible 
time! 
  
  
  
  
Sent from my LG Mobile 
 

mailto:fire.chief@cityofmora.com
mailto:m.yoder@cityofmora.com




CITY OF MORA 
MORA AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

101 Lake Street South 
Mora, MN  55051-1588  

 

ci.mora.mn.us 

320.679.1511              Fax 320.679.3862       
 

The City of Mora is an Equal Opportunity Provider/Employer 
For TDD, call 711 

 
October 19, 2022 
 
Jonathan Schwendeman 
2233 Joplin St 
Mora, MN  55051  
 
Dear Mr. Schwendeman: 

Congratulations! We are pleased to offer to you a position with the Mora Area Fire Department as a 
Firefighter III. This offer is conditional upon the satisfactory results of a background investigation and 
physical exam (see below). Below are some of the details of your employment for your reference. 

• Start Date. Pending the background investigation and physical exam results, your start date 
will  be Monday, November 7, 2022. If you have any questions in the meantime, feel free to 
contact Chief Brett Anderson at 320-282-9200 or Mandi Yoder at 320-225-4804. 

• Physical Examination & Drug Test. Included is a physical examination form. Please see your 
physician as soon as possible and have it completed and signed. A pre-employment drug test is 
also required, and a Titers test is offered. Contact Mandi Yoder to arrange these tests. We 
would like to have your physical exam, drug test, and Titers test completed by Friday, October 
28, 2022. If this is not possible for you, please contact Mandi Yoder. The city will pay the cost 
of the examination, Titers, and drug tests not covered by any insurance. 

• Background Investigation.  Enclosed you will find a background investigation packet.  
Complete and return the forms to city hall.  Forms can be notarized at city hall at no charge to 
you.  You will be contacted when the background investigation is complete. If satisfactory you 
will be instructed to come to city hall to complete the new hire paperwork. 

• Training Period. You will serve a twelve (12) month probationary period. During this time, you  
will be evaluated for your suitability for the position. 

• Compensation. Your wage will be $10 per hour for response to an emergency at the scene, 
$10  per hour for response to the station, meetings, drills, etc. 

• Status/Hours. This position is classified as paid-on-call. Generally, you will be paged to respond  
to emergencies based on the needs of the department. In addition, regularly scheduled 
meetings, drills, and training are required. This position requires daytime, evening, and 
weekend work. 

Other benefits and conditions of employment are explained in the city’s personnel policy and the fire 
department policy provided to you. To summarize the steps you need to take: 

• Indicate whether you accept this conditional offer of employment by signing below and 
promptly  returning a copy of this letter to city hall. 

• Complete and return the background investigation forms with the signed offer of employment 
letter. 



 

 

• Contact Mandi Yoder to arrange to have a pre-employment drug test, physical, pulmonary test, 
and Titers test scheduled and administered.  

• Return the physical exam form and vaccination declination statement to city hall as soon as it 
is completed, but no later than Friday, November 4, 2022. 

• Schedule a time with Mandi Yoder for onboarding paperwork at city hall.  
 
Please acknowledge your acceptance of this conditional offer in writing by signing below and return a 
copy of this letter to city hall as soon as possible. If you have any questions, please contact Mandi Yoder  
at 320-225-4804 or by email at m.yoder@cityofmora.com 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Brett Anderson 
Chief, MAFD 
 
 
Enclosures: Physical Examination Form 
  Vaccination Declination Statement 
  Background Investigation Forms 
 
Cc: Personnel File 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The foregoing conditional offer of employment is hereby accepted: 
 
 
___________________________________________________  _________________________ 
Employee Name - Printed         Date 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Employee Signature 
 



Item No.  

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 18, 2022 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jeff Krie, Activities and Recreation Coordinator  
RE: Special Event Permit Request – Dala Dazzle 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Mora Area Chamber of Commerce will be holding the Dala Dazzle event on Saturday, November 26, 2022.   
 
They are requesting to close Union Street from Forest Avenue to Maple Avenue and an additional 20’ into 
each Railroad Avenue NE, NW, and SW from 12:00pm until 8:00pm. They are also requesting to hold a parade 
as well. No other streets will be closed for the parade.   
 
This is an annual event sponsored by the Chamber of Commerce and other volunteers, including the Mora 
Area Fire Department. Staff is recommending approval of this public property use permit request. 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

• The County has been notified of the street closure. Traffic control devices will be provided by Kanabec 
County and will be placed as directed and removed from the streets at the end of the event. 

• There must be adult supervision by the fire rings until they are extinguished. 
• There will be a KCSO deputy escort for the parade at Maple Ave depending on availability. 
• Any food/drink vendors selling goods must have complete registration/application through the City of 

Mora prior to event.  MHS students are exempt from requirements.   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion to approve the Dala Dazzle special event permit as presented with the above conditions. 
 
 
Attachments 
Special Event Permit Application 
Listing of Activities 
Map of Road Closure 
Certificate of Liability Insurance 
Map of Parade Route 

























Item No. 6b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 18, 2022 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director  
RE: Childcare Presentation 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The city council will receive a presentation on Regional Childcare Capacity and the economic impacts. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Listen, ask questions, and direct staff. 
 
 
Attachments 
Powerpoint Presentation (provided at meeting) 
 





Item No. 8b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date October 18, 2022   
To Mayor and City Council 
From Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director 
 Joe Kohlgraf, Public Works Director 
RE Snake River Bridge Trail Connection 
 
SUMMARY 
The City Council will revisit the Snake River Bridge trail connection and obligation to construct the trial 
connection within a year of the bridge reconstruction. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION________________________________________________________________ 
In May 2020 City Council was presented a concept design for the Snake River Bridge trail connection, in 
conjunction with MnDOT’s scheduled 2022 bridge reconstruction project. The Council voted unanimously to 
support MnDOT’s concept layout and guarantee to pay for the proposed trail connections either at the time of 
construction or the year after construction. Based on MnDOT’s concept plan for the bridge and topography 
near the bridge, SEH estimated the cost to be $280,000-$300,000 to construct the trail connection.   
 
In December 2020, MnDOT proposed and two alternative concept layouts for the Snake River Bridge trail. 
Council selected the trail layout would run north-south and no trial under the bridge running east-west. This 
provided pedestrians access away from vehicle traffic on the west side of the highway going north and south.   
 
Earlier this year, Council approved Resolution No. 2022-422 electing the standard allowance under the 
revenue loss provision of the Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund established under the American Rescue 
Plan Act. $388,389.07 has been allocated to the City of Mora and used to assist with the trail connection. 
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
1.  Move forward with the project and begin the planning process with SEH. 

 
a. The prosed trail connection must be complete within one year of the Snake River Bridge      
Reconstruction. If this is not complete, the City may be at risk of penalties. 
 
b.  The American Rescue Plan funds must be spent by December 31, 2026.  

 
2.  Do nothing.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion for move forward with the project and begin the planning with SEH for the Snake River Bridge Trail 
Connection project.  



Item No. 8b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 18, 2022 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director  
RE: Transportation Alternative Grant – Letter of Intent 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
MnDOT is currently soliciting requests for Greater Minnesota Transportation Alternative projects. With $12.5 
million in federal funding available, this program offers a competitive grant for communities, schools and 
regional agencies to fund pedestrian and bicycle facilities, historic preservation, Safe Routes to School and 
more. 
 
The city applied for this grant in 2013 to rebuild the sidewalk area on Wood Street between 7th Street and 
Railroad Ave. as a paved trail. The city was not selected for funding.   
 
The city may re-apply for this project.  
 
For this solicitation, applicants must first submit a letter of intent by Nov. 4 to be considered. Projects selected 
for the Transportation Alternatives program must be implemented in 2027. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Listen, ask questions, and direct staff. 
 
 
 



Item No. 8c 
 

1 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October 18, 2022 
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Kirsten Faurie, Community Development Director 
RE: Conditional Use Permit to allow a Duplex structure to be located in the R-1 Single Family 

Residential District 

 
SUMMARY 
The City Council will consider granting a conditional use permit to allow a duplex in the R-1 Single Family 
Residential District at 706 Summit Lane.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
In February 2022, city staff initially sat down with a representative of Kelling Capital, LLC to discuss a 
potential project. Kelling Capital proposed construction of a duplex at 706 Summit Lane. At the time, 
staff informed Kelling Capital the proposed duplex was located in the R-3 Multiple Dwelling District. The 
R-3 district lists duplexes as a permitted use, therefore they would not need a conditional use permit to 
proceed. Kelling Capital proceeded with their project, purchased the property in April for $22,000 and 
began site work on the lot. Kelling Capital requested a building permit which has not yet been issued.  
 
In early August, staff re-examined the project and determined the lot was not in the R-3 district, but was 
actually in R-1 where construction of a duplex is allowed but only with a conditional use permit. Kelling 
Capital was contacted, informed of the issue and asked to pause their project and submit a CUP 
application. 
 
DISCUSSION 
On August 17, Kelling Capital LLC, applicant and property owner, applied for a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) to allow construction of a duplex to be located in the R-1 Single Family Residential District. The 
subject site is located at 706 Summit Lane. The proposed project includes construction of a single-level, 
two-unit duplex structure with garages. The site is a 100-foot lot which is currently vacant.  
 
The City’s zoning code identifies duplexes as a Conditional Use within the R-1 Single Family Residential District 
and the proposed use complies with all district regulations. In their research, city staff found five examples of 
approved CUPs for duplex structures in R-1 (see the attached map).  
 
The proposed duplex has been reviewed by the city building official as well as the public works director; 
no concerns have been identified.  
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing Sept. 12 and heard comments from the public. The majority of 
comments included concerns about the units being rented instead of owned and the style of the duplex being 
different than the surrounding single-family homes.  



Memorandum 

  2 
 

 
The Planning Commission voted during a special meeting on Sept. 26 to recommend approval of the CUP with 
conditions.  
 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 
1. Approve the CUP with conditions as presented or amended. 

 
2. Deny the CUP, providing specific reasons for denial for the written record. 
 
3. Table the request for further consideration. The review period for this request has already been extended 

the maximum amount and expires on December 15, 2022; if the Council tables the request, a decision will 
have to be made by December 15 or the request will be automatically approved.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Motion to approve as presented or amended. 
 
 
Attachments 
1. League of MN Cities general information regarding Land Use Conditional Use Permits 
2. Map of other CUPs approved for duplex structures in R-1 
3. Site Plan 
4. Proposed Resolution No. 2022-1022 

 



���������	
�����
������������������������������� �!�!�"#$%�&'()*()�&'(+*,%�-*(*./0�$(1'.2/)$'(3�4'�(')�5%*�$)�/%�/�%56%)$)5)*�1'.�0*-/0�/7+$&*3�8(,�/))'.(*,-*(*./0�'9$($'(%�&$)*7�/.*�/+/$0/60*�1.'2�)#*�:*/-5*;%�<*%*/.&#�%)/=3	
�����
���>��?�@AB��C�AB��������������B������C���@�C��D�EF�C���B���GAB�BH����CE�@C�AB���I��B�C����DD��@�BCF��C��@�EC��B��C�B��E��J�K���GAB�BH�AE��B�B@��C�D�@�������C��A�C�L�B�E����C�B��E���C��C��DD���CA�����@AB��C�AB������� ��B�MD�@�N@��C�B��E���C��C��DD���CA���D�EC�@���E�@AB��C�AB��������B���H�O�B�GAB�BH����CE�@CJ?��������C�D�@�����@AB��C�AB�����@�����AP�Q�G�E����B��E�BC��B�C��������C���P �AEMD�@����DEA���F��C��C��C��DEADA�����A@�C�AB�F���DE���BCJRAE��S�FD�� �@�C����AT�B�����HB�C�������C��C�H�B�E�C��CE�U@�V��@�����P�F����@�����@�E� ���EO�@��C�C�AB� �@ABO�B��B@���CAE�� �AE��E�O�WC�E��X����@AB��C�AB�������J	
�����
���>���Y�����?�@AB��C�AB�������D�EF�C�VZ[�X�������A@�F�BCJ�?�@�C�����������D�EF�C�CA����AI���@AB��C�AB������I��B�C����DD��@�BC�F��C��C���H�B�E����B���D�@�N@�AE��B�B@���C�B��E��J�K���D�EF�C����AI��C������AB����P�C����DD��@�BC����E������C����C�B��E�����C�PAEC���B�C���GAB�BH�AE��B�B@�J�MC�C����I��C�AE�G���@AB��C�AB�������D�EF�C��V��BBJ�MC�CJ�\�]̂!J_̀àXJb������	������������?�GAB�BH�AE��B�B@��C�D�@�������C�����H�B�E����C�B��E���C��C��DD���CA�����@AB��C�AB�������J�RAE�S�FD�� ��B�AE��B�B@��F�H�C�E�c��E������@AB��C�AB��������CA�@ABPAEF�CA�C���@AFDE���B��O���B������D��B�AP�C���@AFF�B�C� ����@AFD�C�����I�C����dA�B�BH�DEAD�EC��� ��B�������EO��������c��C��EA�����B��D����@��C���C���JeY�f�gf�	��������������B��GAB�BH�AE��B�B@���I�������A���C�A�C��D�@�N@��C�B��E���PAE���D�EC�@���E�@AB��C�AB������ ��@���������B������AD�E�C�BH����E�O�WC�E�J�MD�@�N@��C�B��E���AT�B����E����AhW�CE��C�D�Ei�BH�B���A���BH��E��� ���B��@�D�BH��B����C��D��B ��B���A�E��AP�����B����AD�E�C�ABJb������j�f
�����
���>���Y������L�B�E���� �@�C����F���AB���HE�BC�Z[���PAE�������D�@�N@��������C����B�C���GAB�BH�AE��B�B@����@AB��C�AB���������B���D�EC�@���E�GAB�BH����CE�@CJ



������������	
������	�����������
	����
	��������	����
	�	��������������	���������������������	
������������������
�����������	��	������
	�	�
���	�	����
���
������
�������
	����
	�������������
�����
���
���������
��
������������	����
��������
�����
	����
	���������������	���������������	������ !"�#$%&'(�%�)*+���		�	��
������
	��
,�	�������
	�����������������������
	��	����-�����
���	����
	���
����������
�	�����.����������������
�������������
�	�����
�����	�������������
�����
��	
��������
������.
��������������	�����������		�	��
������
	������������
��	��
��������������������������
�	��������
����������/0123$04�%55$"6%7�������
�
�����
	����
	�����������������
��������	������	�������������	����������
����	�����
	�	�
���	�	���������������	������	��������
������
	����
	�����������������������������	���������������
���	�	������	����������������������������	
�������������
���	����������89:;%<�$270=�������	���>������
��������������?�����
�@�		��
��A��BCD�������������������������
����
����	��������	�BC������
����������������������������
�����������=�����������E��	���������������
���
���	������
	���BC�����������
	����������
����
��	������	����
����E������
	�
�������	������BCD��������
���	��������BCD�������������������
�����
���
����	������>����������	�����������
������������
�����
	���������	�����
����F@�		��.�����G�HI�JJK�L'!0$�M"&43'3"&(�"&�50$N3'(=���������������������
	������
	����
	��������	��
�����
���	�	������	�������
��������������
	��������������	����
	���	����	�����������
����O
���E�������������
	�	�
���	�	����������
	����
	���������
����	
����������������������
��	
������������
	��	����?���	����
��������������������>������������������	�	��	����	������	��
	����
	���
����������	���
��	�������������������������	��������
���P3N0�73N3'(�&"'�50$N3''04.�����������������������������	���	��Q��������
	���������
	����
	����������
	�����
�������F@�		��.�����G�RBS�TIJI��������TK��������
�	����	���������������������������������	�����
����
	��
�����
�������		����������������	
���
	�����	�������������������E����	�	����������������	
���	����
���	�
������
����
	����������
����������
������	�������������
����������
�������������
	����
	����������
	�����
��������F=�U��V���IJD=DTS�FO��������SW��HJJCKK�������������������
�������������
	�����	���
	��������������������������
��������
	�	��

������	�	������������������	
�����
	����
	���������������.�������������
�������	�������������������
�X=�����
���������
����
�������	���������������������Y�	��������
������	���
������������������	�Y�
��	�����
	�	��������
	��	
��
	�������������F.�����G�RBS�TIJWK�+2Z73M�!0%$3&#(����������������
������
�
�����
	����
	�������
	����,�����������
�������>������������������	F@�		��.�����G�RBS�TIJI��������SK������������������
���������������	
�����
��������������������	�



�����������	
��
������������������������	�����	���������������	��	
���������	
��
����������	
�������������	�������������������������������	
����	����������	��������	����	��������	���������	
���� !�"���	�����������	
��������#���	����$
�������������	
����%����
���������	�
�����������������	��������������	���
�	
���	
���������	����	��	
��������	���������	����������
�	
�	�	
�������
�����%�����	���&'���(	�	��)�*+,� !-����%��� .�/012�3456�07�869307:;���	���<��������=#����">�������?���	
���	���
�������������������������	����$
��������	
���	�@��������������	���	����������	
���	���������	
����������	��	
�����	�������	���%��	
��������	����$
����	����	����A����>�������������	���	
�����	�������	�	
���	�����������	
��������	����	��	
���	��������	
��	
�������
�����%�����	�������	���	���
��	
����	��������	������	���������������	�������	
��B������������	
���	������<��������=�������	���?���	
���	�����
������
�%�������������	���C����������%��	������	�����%����
���������	
��C�����@��DEFGFH�IJGKL�MEN�OGPGLQR456�4S�760:8T43844U�4V07047W���
%��
�������������������	���������%������������	�������������������X
������	��Y���������������	
�������������
�������Z��	�	
������������������������������	���	
����	��A�������	���	��������	���
���	
�������������	������	��	
�����������	��������[�����	�����\���������������	�	����	��	��
����	
����	�����������
�	
���	
���������	������	��	
��	��������%�	����%�	�	��	�����������������	����	�����������	��������	�������	���	�%������������������������������
%��
��������������������	
�������%��������	
������������	������%������	�����%��������	�����
��������]4̂ _̀ 67191047�4S�869307:X
�	������	���������������	���
���������	�����������	
�	������������	��	���������	��������������������	����	
��+�"�����������#������	
�������������	
��������%����	������	����a����������	����������������������		���	�	���	��<�������	
�������������������%����$
�����		���	�	���	�
�������������	
�����������������������������	�����������<�����	
��������	����	��������������b���������	���������	�����������������cdeGFH�PfL�ghQPLNh�iJP�EM�jGFKGFHQ�EM�jdkP/47U0104795�_l6�V63̀ 01�9S163�0ll_97̂6;�����	��������������	������������	�����
	�	
�	�=������	
�	
������?�$
�	������	��		��
���	����%���	��	
�������������	�����	���	�������	���������������&'���(	�	��)�*+,� !m!����%��� .�(	�	���	�	�	����#�����������%�������������	
�	
�����	����������@���Y���&'���(	�	��)*+,� !m!����%���*.��X
��	
��������	�����������	
������������������
����	
����	��������
		��	
����������������	
������	����������	�;���	���������A��������	��������������	����	
��������	���%�	�	����������������	
����	�����$
��������	������	�%��%������������	��������������\������������	���	������
�������n������������������������	�����
	������	���
��������A�����������	
�	
����	���		�����������������������������	���



Examples of Approved CUPs for Duplex Structures 
City staff found five examples of approved Conditional Use Permits to place a duplex structure in an R-1 
District. It should be noted this is simply a list of CUPs which were approved – it does not mean a duplex 
currently exists at these locations.  

1. June 28, 2000 
501 Walnut St. S  

2. June 24, 2002 
409 Walnut St. S  
403 Walnut St. S  

3. Sept. 23, 2002 
560 Watkins St. 

4. June 23, 2003 
approx. 307 Willow St. 

5. March 22, 2004 
330 Watkins St.  

These properties are shown in orange on the map below; 706 Summit Lane is shown in blue: 

 

 







RESOLUTION NO. 2022-1022 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA, RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT ALLOWING A DUPLEX TO BE LOCATED IN THE R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

AS REQUESTED BY KELLING CAPITAL LLC 
  

WHEREAS, Kelling Capital LLC, applicant and property owner, submitted an application dated received 
August 17, 2022 and considered complete on August 17, 2022 for a Conditional Use Permit allowing a 
Duplex to be located in the R-1 Single Family Residential District; and 
  
WHEREAS, the subject property is located at 706 Summit Lane, and 
 
WHEREAS, the subject property is legally described as:  
 

PID 22.05825.00 
The South 30 feet of Lot Four (4), and the North 70 feet of Lot Five (5), Summit Addition to the Village of 

Mora, Kanabec County, Minnesota 
 
WHEREAS, notice was provided and on August 26, 2022, the Planning Commission conducted a public 
hearing regarding this application, at which it heard from the Community Development Director and 
invited members of the public to comment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered the request and the Planning Commission’s recommendation at 
its September 26, 2022 meeting and made the following finding as required by Zoning Code §150.036 
Conditional Uses, Subd. E Standards: 
 
Criteria #1 The use is consistent with the purposes and intent of the Zoning Code and the purposes 

and intent of the zoning district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed 
use. 

Finding #1 The Zoning Code identifies the proposed construction of a duplex as a Conditional Use 
within the R-1 Single Family Residential District and the proposed use complies with all 
district regulations. Therefore, the proposed use is consistent with the intent of the 
Zoning Code and R-1 Single Family Residential District.  

 
Criteria #2 The use is in keeping with the Comprehensive Plan and the policies thereof. 
Finding #2 The city’s current Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2021, encourages the development 

and maintenance of a broad variety of housing types to provide the full range of housing 
opportunities at different sizes, densities and price ranges. This housing goal encourages 
that city ordinances allow for flexibility in housing types and the design of neighborhoods 
so as to be responsive to the needs of current and future residents.  

 
Criteria #3 The use will not cause undue traffic congestion or hazards. 
Finding #3 There is no evidence the proposed use would cause undue traffic congestion or hazards 

in the general area.  
 



Criteria #4 The use will be adequately served by public utilities and all other necessary public 
facilities and services. 

Finding #4 The property is currently served by municipal water, sewer, and electric service; and, the 
property is adequately served by all other public services, including public streets and 
emergency services. 

 
Criteria #5 The structure and the site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse effect 

upon adjacent properties. 
Finding #5 The proposed duplex is a single-level residential structure. There is no evidence to 

suggest that the appearance will have an adverse effect upon adjacent properties. 
 
Criteria #6 The use will be sufficiently compatible by distance or screened from adjacent 

residentially zoned or used land so that existing homes will not be depreciated in value 
and there will be no deterrence to development of vacant land. 

Finding #6 The proposed use is compatible with R-1 requirements for area, frontage and yard 
setbacks. There is no evidence to suggest the proposed use would cause depreciation in 
value of existing homes. 

 
Criteria #7 The use will not jeopardize the public’s health, safety or general welfare. 
Finding #7 There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed use will jeopardize the public’s health, 

safety or general welfare. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Mora, MN hereby approves the 
Conditional Use Permit subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The duplex shall be installed in conformance with the site plan submitted August 17, 2022. Any 

major deviation, as determined by city staff, shall require further review and approval by the City 
Council. 

2. The applicant and/or property owner shall 
a. Install separate water services after initial line to isolate sides of the duplex 
b. Use erosion/sediment control such as fences or logs during construction 
c. Clean the road of sediment/mud and debris during all stages of construction  

3. Issuance of a building permit is required prior to construction. 
4. This Conditional Use Permit shall be utilized and all conditions shall be met within one year of 

recording or the Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void. 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for approval by Council Member _______________ 
and seconded by Council Member _______________. 
 

Voting for the resolution: .......................  
Voting against the resolution:.................  
Abstained from voting: ...........................  
Absent: ....................................................  
 

Motion carried and resolution adopted this 18th day of October, 2022. 
 
_______________________________   ATTEST: _____________________________ 
Alan Skramstad, Mayor       Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 



Item No. xx 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date October 12, 2022 
To Mayor and City Council 
From Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director 
RE Grader Replacement Pre-Purchase  

 
SUMMARY 
Current, the city owns a 1993- Caterpillar 120G which is used for road maintenance and snow removal.  We 
are currently looking at a replacement grader, 2011- John Deere 772 GP, for the spring of 2023.   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Staff has been looking into options recently for rental, lease and purchase option.  At this time, an opportunity 
to purchase a replacement for our current grader has been offered.  Our current machine is now 20 years old, 
and major repairs are needed.  Currently, a full rebuild for our current machine can be done but is not cost 
effective.  The machine that we are currently looking at would cost about the same or less than a rebuild.  Staff 
has adjusted the CIP to provide a purchase arrangement with funds from the city and loan, to be paid off in 
2024 without major changes to the CIP budget plan total FIF/Capital (tax levy) total.  Funds in the 2023 will be 
shifted to supply the road grader replacement for approximately 45%  of the funds needed by moving funds 
from the heavy duty truck funds keeping the yearly amount needed the same. 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Approve agreement for purchasing machine in 2022 for delivery and payment in February of 2023.  
This is not budgeted for 2022 but will follow CIP schedule moving forward with changes made to CIP 
items that will not affect the 2023 CIP budget as it sits.   

2. Approve purchasing machine in 2022 for delivery and payment in February of 2023.  This option uses 
funds in CIP and 3rd party financing to purchase the machine. 

3. Do nothing currently.  Continue with repairs as and when needed, pushing purchase out further.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Move forward with purchase approval and discuss financing options at council meeting, using option 2 with 
changes to 2023 CIP Plan. 
 
 
Attachments 
1- Quote from John Deere 





 

 

 

 

 

 

Investment Proposal (Quote)
RDO Equipment Co.

6700 Highway 10 Northwest
Sauk Rapids MN, 56379

Phone: (320) 259-6222 - Fax: (320) 259-6014
Proposal for:
CITY OF MORA
101 LAKE ST S
MORA, MN, 550511538
KANABEC

Investment Proposal Date:
Pricing Valid Until:

Deal Number:
Customer Account#:

Compact Equipment Sales:
Phone:

Fax:
Email:

9/28/2022
10/12/2022

1592708
1511013

Matthew Lehrer

mlehrer@rdoequipment.com

Equipment Information
Quantity Serial Number

Stock Number
Hours
(approx.)

Status / Year / Make / Model
Additional Items

Cash Price

1 1DW772GPEBE637308
X689701

3692 Used 2011 JOHN DEERE 772G $154,500.00

Equipment Subtotal: $154,500.00

Trade Information
Serial Number Year / Make / Model Payoff Information Trade In Hours Trade In Value
87V09649 1993 CAT 120G $0.00 5314 ($24,000.00)

Total Trade in Value: ($24,000.00)

Trade Balance Owed: $0.00

Net Difference: ($24,000.00)

Purchase Order Totals
Balance: $130,500.00

Total Taxable Amount: $0.00
MN STATE TAX: $0.00

MN COUNTY TAX: $0.00
MN SPECIAL TAX: $0.00

Sales Tax Total: $0.00
Sub Total: $130,500.00

Cash with Order: $0.00
Balance Due: $130,500.00

D1592708 Page 1 of 2



Equipment Options
Qty Serial Number Year / Make / Model Description
1 1DW772GPEBE637308 2011 JOHN DEERE 772G L017 RADIO

L016 CIRCLE SLIP CLU
L010 FRT HTCH
L007 SNOW WING
L005 FRT HYD
K003 14 BLD
J002 3 PIECE RIMS
I002 RADIALS
H004 17.5X25
G001 FWD
F001 DIFF LOC
D004 PWR SHFT TRANS
D002 CLOTH SEAT
C002 AIR SEAT
B001 LOW CAB
A004 CAB/AC/HEAT

D1592708 Page 2 of 2



Item No. 8e 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date October 12, 2022 
To Mayor and City Council 
From Joseph Kohlgraf, Public Works Director 
RE Medium Duty Truck Replacement/Purchase  

 
SUMMARY 
Current, the city owns and uses a 2007 Ford 450 with dump box and plow.  This truck is due for replacement in 
2022 per CIP arrangements with an equivalent vehicle arrangement.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Current vehicle is used heavily in the street department for daily activities through the year.  This truck is also 
used for snow removal in areas that bigger equipment is no viable to be used.  This vehicle has many hours of 
operation on it and is show those results with required repair and maintenance.  At this time, staff is asking for 
permission to move forward with a purchase agreement replacement based on the state bid contract, which is 
scheduled to be released next week.  Current amount of $97,000.00 is budgeted in the 2022 CIP program. 
OPTIONS & IMPACTS 

1. Approve purchasing vehicle through 2022 MN State bid process.  This is a budgeted for 2022 CIP for 
$97,000.000 

2. Do nothing currently.  Continue with repairs as and when needed, pushing purchase out further.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
Motion for approval to move forward with purchase of medium duty truck using MN State Bid process per 
2022 CIP plan not to exceed $97,000.00 
 
 
Attachments 
1- None 





Item No. 9b 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: October18, 2022  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Mandi Yoder, Human Resources 
RE: Consideration of Flexible Work Arrangement 

SUMMARY 
The City Council will review for consideration a Flexible Work Arrangement for full-time 
employees. 

BACKGROUND 
City staff was introduced to Teleworking during the COVID-19 pandemic. During that time, 
staff were scheduled to telework from home certain days of the week and many staff found 
that working remotely was uninterrupted, which allowed them to accomplish more focused 
tasks. Flexible work arrangements can also help the City with employee retention efforts.  
From Memorial Day through Labor Day, 2022, city hall staff participated in a summer 
schedule; some teleworked from home one day a week and others took advantage of a 
flextime schedule changing their normal work hours, but still working 40 hours in one week.  
Not all FT positions are suitable for a flexible work arrangement and it’s important to note 
that a flexible work arrangement is a workplace strategy, not a benefit or a right.  
The model is that a full-time (FT) employee could apply for a flexible work arrangement, the 
department head and city administrator would evaluate the application considering job 
duties, departmental needs, customer contact, and union contract language before 
responding to the applicant. The supervisor or city administrator may also suspend or 
rescind an approved flexible work arrangement at their discretion.    

OPTIONS IMPACTS 
1. To approve a Flexible Work Arrangement for the organization.
2. To deny the request for consideration of a Flexible Work Arrangement for eligible full-

time positions.

RECOMMENDATIONS 
For the City Council to consider making a motion to approve the Flexible Work 
Arrangement policy as presented in Resolution number 2022–1023.   

Attachments:  Resolution No. 2022-1023 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-1023 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MORA, MINNESOTA,  
TO INSTITUTE A FLEXIBLE WORK ARRANGMENT POLICY 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, Flexible Work Arrangements have become an important part of the modern 
work culture, promote flexibility, and help with organizational employee retention efforts. 
 
WHEREAS, staff recognizes that employees have increased productivity during 
uninterrupted work time and have appreciated a flexible schedule for a work-life 
balance.    
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Mora, Minnesota as 
follows: 
 
The City of Mora & Mora Municipal Utilities Personnel Policy chapter §1805 HOURS OF 
WORK is hereby amended to include §1805.6 Flexible Work Arrangements. 
 
§ 1805.6  FLEXIBLE WORK ARRANGEMENTS 
 
SCOPE 
Full-time employees may be considered for a flexible work arrangement, depending on 
their job duties, departmental needs, and union contract language. 
 
PURPOSE 
The City of Mora supports workplace flexibility to promote a highly productive work 
environment and recognizes that flexible work arrangements can help organizational 
employee retention efforts. The City also recognizes that flexible work arrangements are 
an important part of modern work culture. Such arrangements offer an alternative 
approach to completing work through non-traditional work hours and worksites. 
 
This policy establishes the guidelines for flexible work arrangements to situations that 
fall outside of the typical City work schedule and last longer than two months. These 
arrangements must meet the needs of the City and the responsibilities of the position 
the employee holds. While not all positions will be suitable for flexible work 
arrangements, requests will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis taking into account 
the departmental needs and the employee’s ability to maintain a high level of service. A 
flexible work arrangement is a business and workplace strategy, not an employee 
benefit or employee right. 
 
FLEXIBLE WORK OPTIONS 
 
Flextime: Agreed-upon starting and ending times that differ from the standard schedule 
for the department, division, or work group. Flextime does not reduce the total number 



of hours worked in a given workweek. Flextime options can include fixed starting/ending 
times or workdays (other than the typical 8 – 4:30, M-F schedule). 
 
Compressed Workweek: A traditional 40-hour workweek condensed into fewer than 
five workdays (e.g., four 10-hour workdays). 
 
Teleworking: A regular, routine work arrangement that allows the employee to perform 
a portion of the job outside of City facilities. This type of arrangement specifies the 
number of hours to be worked outside of the office and the specific time in which it will 
occur. 
 
CRITERIA 
Flexible work arrangements are discretionary based upon the operational needs of the 
department, division, or work group and must have prior approval by the supervisor, 
department head, and City Administrator.  Requests for flexible work arrangements will 
be evaluated based on the employee’s ability to perform their job duties, tasks, and 
responsibilities remotely or independent of co-workers or team members. Employees 
must pass their initial probationary period and/or be in good standing to be eligible for 
flexible work arrangements. 
 
General Guidelines:  

• A flexible work arrangement is a business and workplace strategy, not an 
employee right or universal employee benefit. This arrangement does not change 
the basic terms and conditions of employment with the City. 

• Flexible work arrangement requests are not the same as the occasional need for 
flexibility. Flexible work arrangements generally last longer than two months and 
are a regular and predictable part of the employee’s work schedule. 

• Not all requests will be accommodated and not all positions are appropriate for 
flexible work options. 

• The operational needs of the department, division, or work group must be met 
with flexible work arrangements. 

• Performance expectations remain the same regardless of the employee’s work 
schedule or location. An employee’s current and past job performance, 
demonstrated work product, ability to work independently, and organization/time-
management skills will all be considered when making determinations. 

• Flexible work arrangements are not guaranteed or permanent – they may change 
as the needs of the City, department, division, or work group change. 

• The supervisor may temporarily adjust work schedules or location as needed to 
meet the operational needs of the work group. 

• When making decisions regarding flexible work arrangements, the impact on 
other staff members will be considered. 

• Customers and staff must not be adversely affected by a flexible work 
arrangement. A flexible work arrangement may be discontinued at the 
Supervisor’s and/or Department Head’s discretion if adverse effects arise. 

• Flexible work arrangements must be in compliance with the City’s information 
security and data policies as well as all other City policies. 



• The employee must receive approval for temporary deviations in the established 
work schedule from their supervisor in the same manner that they would without 
a flexible work arrangement. 

• All flexible work arrangements are subject to the City’s bargaining unit contract 
language and the Fair Labor Standards Act and other relevant laws. 

• Eight hours of pay is the maximum allowed per holiday for full-time employees 
(pro-rated for part-time employees).  Work schedule options when a holiday falls 
within the work week: 
 If an employee’s flexible work arrangement consists of four 10-hour days 

then the following applies: 
a) If the holiday falls on the day that the employee would normally have 

off (i.e., work schedule is Tuesday-Friday and holiday falls on Monday) 
then the workweek will revert back to a normal 8-hour per day 
workweek. Employee will have 8 hours holiday pay on Monday and 
work 8 hours per day for the remainder of the week.  

b) If the holiday falls on a day that an employee is scheduled to work 
(i.e., work schedule is Tuesday-Friday and holiday falls on Friday) 
then the employee is required to use vacation or personal leave to 
supplement the rest of the scheduled workday OR the employee can 
choose in advance of the holiday week to revert the workweek to a 
normal 8-hour per day workweek. 

 
Teleworking Guidelines: 
The work area should be suitable to complete the work assigned, safe, ergonomically 
appropriate, and located in a space where employees can conduct business 
professionally. Employees that telework must have internet access with enough 
bandwidth to reliably connect to the City’s VPN. As bandwidth requirements can vary 
greatly depending on the work to be performed, employees should contact IT if they 
need assistance determining the appropriate bandwidth for their specific needs. 
 

• To ensure continuity of operations, employees may only work remotely one day 
of their normal work week, as long as their department needs are being met or as 
approved otherwise by the department head and City Administrator. 

• The employee will establish an appropriate work environment within their home 
for work purposes. The City will not be responsible for costs associated with the 
setup of the employee’s home office, such as internet connection/monthly fees, 
modem, phone, remodeling, furniture or lighting, nor for repairs or modifications 
to the home office space. The City accepts no responsibility for damage or 
repairs to employee-owned equipment. The work area should provide sufficient 
security for data, phone conversations, etc.  

• Equipment needs (including computer, software) for teleworking will be 
determined by the City and in coordination with the City’s IT department. 
Equipment provided by the City is limited to authorized persons for City-related 
purposes only. The telecommuter must sign an inventory of all City property 
received and agree to take appropriate action to protect the items from damage 



or theft. Upon separation of employment, all City property will be returned to the 
City, unless other arrangements have been made. 

• Provisions of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and data privacy 
policies must be followed when performing work at a remote location. Employees 
will be expected to ensure the confidentiality and security of all City data 
accessed from or transported to the remote work site. 

• A teleworking arrangement cannot and is not a substitute for regular dependent, 
elder/childcare, or sick leave usage. If dependent elder/child are home during 
teleworking hours, elder/childcare must be in place. 

• The teleworker’s schedule, including number of teleworking days per week, 
normal teleworking hours, and use of benefit leave time will be discussed with 
the employee prior to finalizing the teleworking agreement. 

• The supervisor retains the right to call a teleworker into the office as needed. 
Teleworkers must be accessible as they would be in City offices. The only 
difference is where the work occurs. The arrangement must be seamless to the 
department and customers. 

• Teleworkers are expected to develop an effective communication strategy with 
their supervisors and work unit. Teleworkers must be reachable during the 
agreed-upon work hours. 

• Travel to and from a City office for the purposes of meetings or other work 
requirements are not considered eligible for compensation and mileage will not 
be reimbursed. 

• Any work-related accident, injury, or illness that occurs while teleworking should 
be reported immediately to the employer’s supervisor so that a first report of 
injury can be completed. An employee is covered by Worker’s Compensation 
laws while teleworking. 

• An employee’s existing insurance policy may not include coverage for liability 
arising out of the use of a residence for a business purpose. Employees are 
solely responsible for determining an appropriate level of insurance based on 
their own circumstances. Employees are encouraged to check with their 
insurance carrier about the implications of working from home. 

• Federal and state tax implications of teleworking and use of a home office are the 
responsibility of the employee. 

 
PROCESS 

1. The employee must complete a flexible work arrangement request form and 
submit it to their supervisor. 

2. The employee and supervisor must discuss the flexible work arrangement 
request. 

3. The work group’s operational needs must be considered (e.g., impact on work 
group, co-workers, customers, budget, business needs, etc.) 

4. Supervisors should specify when the employee is expected to be present at the 
office, how they are to be available during their offsite work time and how they 
are to communicate their specific availability, if the flexible work arrangement is 
approved. 



5. Flexible work arrangement agreements must be in writing and approved by the 
supervisor, department head, and City Administrator before taking effect. 

6. Supervisors should evaluate an employee's flexible work arrangement with them 
on an ongoing basis and review the flexible work arrangements among their work 
group to ensure ongoing equity. Flexible work arrangements will need to be 
renewed each calendar year. 

7. The City will assess the flexible work arrangement policy on a periodic basis. 
 
 
 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
Performance expectations remain at the same level as they would if not under a flexible 
work arrangement. If performance standards are not met, the ability to work a flexible 
work arrangement may be revoked until performance improves. 
 
 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and moved for adoption by Council Member 
___________________ and seconded by Council Member ______________________. 
 
 
Voting for resolution ............  
Voting against resolution .....  
Abstained from voting ..........  
Absent .................................  
 
 
Motion carried and resolution adopted this 18 day of October, 2022 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
 Attested: 
  
 ____________________________ 
 City Clerk 



Item No. 9c 

1 

 M E M O R A N D U M 
Date: June 21, 2022   
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Glenn Anderson, City Administrator 
RE: Consideration of Probation Release - Segelstrom 
 
 
SUMMARY 
The City Council to review for consideration the recommendation to release Natasha 
Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director, from probationary status.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On July 7, 2021, Natasha Segelstrom was hired as the Administrative Services Director, the 
probationary period was scheduled for review with potential release on July 7, 2022 per the 
personnel policy however, with a new city administrator, it was in the best interest of the City 
to give both parties the ability to work together for an additional three-months before a 
probationary review could be made. Segelstrom has received three personnel evaluations 
during this period. 
During Segelstrom’s time with the City of Mora, she has learned a great deal about the 
duties of the position, her role as a department head, and local government.  
I am recommending satisfactory completion of probation effective October 7, 2022. 
Segelstrom has received the scheduled salary step increases on July 7, 2022.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
For the City Council to consider making a motion to approve the probationary release of 
Natasha Segelstrom, Administrative Services Director, effective October 7, 2022. 
 
 
 
Attachments: none 





 
 

 
Mora Area Fire Department Monthly Update 
 
 

September 2022 

The Mora Area Fire Department was involved with the following fire calls, training and 
education, maintenance, and miscellaneous in the past month. 

Fire Calls (Paid) 

 9-3-22 gas leak 
 9-4-22 car fire 
 9-12-22 car fire canceled  
 9-15-22 alarm at Trail view 
 9-16-22 alarm 
 9-21-22 Structure fire canceled  
 9-23-22 Structure fire 1 
 9-23-22 structure fire 2 
 9-25-22 alarm  

Training and Education (Paid) 

 9-5-22 physical fitness test / training 
 9-19-22 business and relief meeting 

Maintenance (not paid) 

 All trucks done 2x 

Training, Education, and Miscellaneous (not Paid) 

 Interview new firefighter candidates 
 Set up for fireball at the Hall 
 Received new Thermal imaging camera (Grant Money ) 
 

  

 

 





[Type text] 
 

 
September 2022 

 
During the month of September, 2022 Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office contract cars responded to or initiated 
more than 443 calls for service within the City of Mora. The most frequent calls for service were Traffic 
complaints/violations (93), Medical Emergencies (60), and suspicious persons/occurrences (28). These 
numbers are consistent with September of 2021 
 
 
On two separate occasions a speed radar trailer was placed on Mclean Street near Fair Ave to combat recent 
traffic complaints. Residence reported positive results in slowing traffic speed. 
 
 
A contract deputy received certification as a Firearms Instructor in order to provide in-house training to other 
deputies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Kanabec County Sheriff’s Office continues to proudly serve the citizens of Mora within Kanabec County. 
The Sheriff’s Office encourages any and all community members to contact our office with any questions, 
comments, or concerns. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sergeant Dylan VanGorden  #3104 
 
 





 

1 
 

City of Mora, Minnesota 
Airport Board Meeting Minutes 

September 13, 2022 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Board Chair Nick Stafford called to order the regular 
meeting of the Airport Board at 5:00 p.m., on Tuesday, October 11, 2022, in the Mora City Hall 
council chambers.  
 
2. Roll Call: Present: Chair Nick Stafford, Karla Kastenbauer, Stefan Salmonson 

 Absent: Jody Anderson, Dave Gunderson 

Staff Present: City Administrator Glenn Anderson, Airport Manager Joe Kohlgraf, 
and Community Development Director Kirsten Faurie 

3. Adopt Agenda:  
MOTION made by Kastenbauer, seconded by Salmonson, and unanimously carried to amend 
the agenda adding the proposed Mora Airport Board 2023 Meeting Schedule under New 
Business.  
 
MOTION made by Kastenbauer, seconded by Salmonson, and unanimously carried to adopt 
the agenda as amended. 

4. Minutes:  

a. Approve minutes from Sept. 13, 2022: MOTION made by Kastenbauer, seconded by 
Salmonson and unanimously carried to approve Sept. 13 minutes as presented.  

5. Old Business:  

a. Update on Airport Hangar Land Lease Agreement: Faurie updated the board on the 
city council’s decision to adopt the Airport Hangar Land Lease agreement without 
making a change to 18. Right of Entry as was suggested by the Airport Board.  
 
The Airport Board requested to be put on the agenda of the Oct. 18 City Council 
meeting so that members of the board or other pilots may address the city council 
directly regarding the airport hangar land lease agreement. 
 
The board requested staff get clarification from the city attorney regarding the 
rights or authority of the city to enter a privately-owned hangar located on city 
property, and with what kind of notice.  
 
MOTION by Salmonson, seconded by Kastenbauer, and unanimously carried to 
table further discussion on the Airport Hangar Land Lease Agreement 

6. New Business: 

a. 2023 Mora Airport Board Meeting Schedule: MOTION by Salmonson, seconded by 
Kastenbauer, and unanimously carried to approve the 2023 Meeting Schedule.  



 

2 
 

7. Reports 

a. Staff: Kohlgraf reported supply chain difficulties getting a card reader for the fuel 
system; a controlled leak had been repaired. Kohlgraf requested pilots file reports 
of issues with birds like seagulls and geese, meaning hits or near-misses, because if 
more complaints are filed he can take further nuisance mitigation measures. 
Kohlgraf also reported looking into adding some more lighting at some hangars. 
Lawn mowing is finished for the year and the crosswind runway will be open for the 
moment but will be closed once it snows. The city engineer (SEH) will be present at 
the next meeting to review the airport’s Capital Improvement Plan.  

b. Board members: Salmonson reported he was pleased by and appreciated the 
support of people who came to the fly-in despite the rain.  

8. Adjournment: MOTION made by Kastenbauer, seconded by Salmonson and unanimously 
carried to adjourn the Airport Board meeting at 5:39 p.m.  
 
The next regular meeting of the Airport Board is scheduled for 5 p.m. Tuesday, Nov. 1, 2022.  
  

 
 
 
_________________________                                 Attest: _________________________ 
Board Chair                                                                            Kirsten Faurie, Community 
                  Development Director 
 
 

 

 


	Agenda Council  10182022
	item 4a - 1 Draft CC Minutes 09202022
	item 4b -1 September Claims
	Item 4c - Gambling Permit MN DHA, SRC
	Blank Page

	Item 4d - 1 Staff Report Accept Donations
	Item 4d - 2 Resolution Accepting Restricted Donations
	Item 4e - FF rescind acceptance
	Blank Page

	Item 4f - FF III Offer Schwendeman
	Item 4g - 1 2022 Special Event Permit Dala Dazzle Staff Report
	Blank Page

	Item 4g - 2 Dala Dazzle 2022 Special Event Permit
	Item 6b - 1 Staff Report Child Care
	Item 8a-1 Staff Report Snake River Bridge Trail
	Item 8b - Transportation Alternataive Grant
	item 8c - 1 CUP 706 Summit Lane Duplex - CC Staff Memo Oct. 18 2022
	item 8c - 2 Land Use Conditional Use Permits - League of Minnesota Cities
	item 8c - 3 Examples of Approved CUPs for Duplex Structures
	item 8c - 4 CUP 706 Summit Lane Duplex - Site Plan
	item 8c - 5 CUP 706 Summit Lane Duplex - CC Resolution 2022-1022
	item 8D - 1 Staff Report City council Grader request 2022 oct
	item 8D - 2 Grader Proposal Quote
	item 8e - 1 City council Medium duty truck request 2022 oct
	Item 9b - 1 Memo FWA  res 2022-1023
	Item 9b - 2 Resolution 2022-1023 Flexible Work Arrangement
	Item 9c - 1 Memo Probation Release Segelstrom
	Item 10a - MAFD Monthly Report
	Item 10b - 1 KCSO Spetember report 2022
	item10d Airport Minutes DRAFT
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



